THE COURTYARDS OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. BY-LAWS TABLE OF CONTENTS

			PAG	SF.
ARTICLE 1 - OFFICE			1.63	
	MEMBERSHIP MEETINGS		4	2
1.	Place of Meetings.			2
.2.	Annual Meeting.			2
3.	Special Meetings.			2
4.	Notice.			2
5.	Quorum.			3
6.	Voting.			3
7.	Entitlement to Vote.			3
8.	Adjournments.		,	4
9.	Order of Business.		PAR	4 -6
10.	First Meeting of Members	5 ·	Jet 13 1981	5
11.	Written Consents.		3 198	55 ~
ARTICLE III	- DIRECTORS		7.0	5 Cu)
1.	Board of Directors.		21.75	5
2.	Election of Directors.			6
3.	Director's Meetings.			6
4.	Powers of the Board.			7
5.	Management Agreement.		where:	7
ARTICLE IV -	OFFICERS			8
1.	Election.			8
2.	President.			8
3.	Vice-President.			8
4.	Secretary.			8
5.	Treasurer.			9
6.	Compensation.			9

			PAGE
ARTICLE V -	ASSES	SSMENTS AND FISCAL MANAGEMENT	9
1.	Proparation of Annual Budget, Initial Budget.		
2.	No Waiver.		
3.	Additional Assessments.		
4.	Budg	get Items.	10
	(a)	Current Expenses.	11
	(b)	Reserve for Deferred Maintenance.	11
	(c)	Reserve for Obsolescence and Replacements.	11
Harris II	(d)	Reserve for Alterations and Improvements.	11
	(e)	Reserve for Bad Debts.	11
	(f)	Working Capital.	11
5.	Emer	gency Expenditures.	11
6.	Addi	tional Revenues.	12
7.	Acco	ounting.	12
8.	Book	s and Records.	13
9.	Paym	ment of Assessments.	13
10.	Noti	ces to Mortgagees.	15
11.	Depo	sit of Funds.	. 15
12.	Bond	is.	15
ARTICLE VI -	- RULE	S AND REGULATIONS	16
1.	Adop	tion.	16
2.	Noti	ce.	16
3.	Init	ial Rules and Regulations.	16
ARTICLE VII	- IND	EMNIFICATION	16
1.	Gene	ral.	16
2.	A Re	presentative Capacity.	17
3.	Addi	tional Indomnification.	18
ARTICLE VIII	L - NO	TICES	18
1.	Deli	very.	18
2.	Waiv		18
ARTICLE IX -	PARI.	IAMENTARY RULES	18
ADTICLE V	A SAC PATE	MENTO	19

THE COURTYARDS

OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

THE COURTYARDS OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., (the "Association"), a nonprofit corporation formed under the laws of the State of Louisiana and the governing body of certain immovable property submitted to the provisions of the Louisiana Condominium Act, La. R.S. 9:1121-1142, as amended, as the same may from time to time be amended (hereinafter referred to as the "Condominium Act"), in accordance with the Condominium Declaration creating and establishing THE COURTYARDS - A Condominium, dated October 12, 1981, and executed by Marigny-Royal (the "Developer"), a Louisiana ordinary partnership IN COMMENDAM, domiciled in Orleans Parish, Louisiana whose Articles of Partnership are recorded in Partnership Book ____ Page _____, under Register Number _____ of the records of Orleans Parish, Louisiana, and in MOB _____, folio _____ of the records of the Registrar of Conveyances of Orleans Parish, Louisiana, does hereby adopt the following By-Laws which shall govern the administration of said Association and of the Condominium Property. All capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings provided in the Condominium Declaration.

and mortgages of Units of the Condominium, including Units committed to interval possessory rights, Timeshare Units, shall be subject to the provisions of the By-Laws. The mere acquisition by an Owner or Co-Owner of a Unit of the Condominium or of an ownership interest therein will signify and constitute a ratification and acceptance of these By-Laws by any such owner.

ARTICLE I

OFFICE

The principal office of the Association shall be located in the City of New Orleans, State of Louisiana at 1518 Magazine Street or such other address as may be designated by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE II

MEMBERSHIP MEETINGS

- Place of Meetings. All meetings of the members of the Association shall be held at the principal office of the Association or such other place, within or without the State of Louisiana, as may be designated by the Soard of Directors.
- 2. Annual Meeting. Subject to the provisions of Section 11 of the Article, an annual meeting of the members shall be held on the third Tuesday of January in each year, or if said day be a legal holiday, then on the next succeeding day not a legal holiday, for the purpose of electing Directors and for the transaction of such other business as may be properly brought before the meeting of the members, provided that, upon election by the Developer to terminate its control of the Condominium, the first annual meeting of the members may be called at a time and place set by the Board of Directors.
- 3. Special Meetings. Special moetings of the members, for any purpose or purposes, may be called by the Fresident or the Board of Directors and shall be called by such Officers upon receipt of a written request from members holding at least thirty (30%) percent of the voting power of the corporation.
- 4. Notice. Notice of all member meetings stating the time and place and the objects for which the meeting is called shall be given by the President or Secretary, unless waived in writing by the members. All members present at a meeting shall be deemed to have received or to have waived such notice. Such notice shall be in writing to each member at his address as it appears on the books of the Association and shall be mailed not less than ten (10) days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the

date of the meeting. Proof of such mailing may be given by affidavit or in the signed minutes of the meeting.

- 5. Quorum. A quorum at any members' meeting shall consist of persons entitled to cast at least fifty-one (51%) percent of the votes of the entire membership present in person or by proxy. The joinder of a member in the action of any m-eting by signing and concurring in the minutes thereof shall constitute the presence of such member for the purpose of determining a quorum.
- 6. <u>Voting</u>. When a quorum is present at any meeting, the holders of fifty-one (51%) percent of the voting rights present or represented by written proxy shall decide any question brought before the meeting, unless the question is one upon which by expressed provision of the statutes, the Articles of Incorporation, the Condominium Declaration, or these By-Laws a different vote is required, in which case such expressed provision shall govern and control the decision of such question.
- 7. Entitlement to Vote. The aggregate number of votes for all members of the Association shall be on hundred (100). In any meeting of members each Owner or Co-Owner of a Unit shall be entitled to cast the percentage of total vote equal to the percentage interest in the Common Elements attributable to this Unit as provided in the Condominium Declaration. If a Unit (other than a Timeshare Unit) is owned by more than one person, or is under lease, the person entitled to cast the vote for the Unit shall be designated by a certificate of appointment signed by all of the record owners of the Unit and filed with the Secretary of the Association. With respect to Timeshare Units, each co-owner of such a Unit shall be entitled to cast that per centage of the vote equal to the interest which he has in the Common Elements as a result of his undivided percentage ownership of the Unit, as provided in the Condominium Delcaration. If a Unit or undivided interest in a Timeshare Unit is owned by a corporation, the person entitled to cast the vote with respect thereto shall be designated by the President or Vice-President

of such owning corporation and attested to by the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of such corporation and filed with the Secretary of the Association. Such certificates shall be valid until revoked, or until a change in the ownership of the Unit concerned occurs. A certificate designating the person entitled to cast the vote of a Unit or interest in a Unit may be revoked at any time by the person or persons who executed the same. Votes may be cast in person or by proxy. Proxies shall be in writing and may be made by any person entitled to vote. They shall be valid only for the time or for the particular meeting designated in the proxy and must be filed with the Secretary before the appointed time of the meeting. Approval or disapproval of a Unit Owner upon any matter, provided for by law, or by the Provisions of the Articles of Incorporation, the Condominium Declaration or these By-Laws, or otherwise, whether or not the subject of an Association meeting, shall be by the same person or person who would cast the vote of such Owner in an Association meeting.

- 8. Adjournments. If any meeting of members cannot be organized because a quorum has not attended, the members who are present, either in person or by proxy, may adjourn the meeting from time to time until a quorum is present. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the case of any meeting called for the election of Directors, those who attend the second of such adjourned meetings, although less than a quorum as fixed in Section 5 of this Article, shall nevertheless constitute a quorum for the purpose of electing Directors.
- 9. Order of Business. The order of business at annual members' meetings, and, as far as practical at all other members' meetins, shall be:
 - (1) Election of chairman of the meeting;
 - (2) Calling of the roll and certifying proxies;
 - (3) Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice;
 - (4) Reading and disposal of any unapproved minutes;
 - (5) Reports of Officers;

G2

- (6) Reports of committees;
- (7) Election of Directors (as necessary):
- (8) Unfinished business;
- (9) New business; and
- (10) Adjournment.
- 10. First Meeting of Members. Until a date which eighteen (18) months after the date of the Condominium Declaration, or until the Developer has completed and sold the entire ownership in at least four (4) Units of the Condominium, or until the Developer elects to terminate its control of the Condominium, whichever shall first occur, there shall be no meeting of members of the Association unless a meeting is called by the Board of Directors.
- 11. Written Consents. Whenever, by any provision of law, the Condominium Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation, or these By-Laws, the affirmative vote of members is required to authorize or constitute action by the Association on behalf of the Condominium, the consent in writing to such action, signed by all of the members having voting power in the particular question, shall be sufficient for the purpose, without necessity for a meeting of the members. The consent, together with a certificate by the Secretary of the Association to the effect that the subscribers to the consent constitute all of the members entitled to vote on the particular question, shall be filed with the records of the proceedings of the members.

ARTICLE III

DIRECTORS

1. Board of Directors. The affairs of the Association shall be managed by a Board of Directors consisting of such number of Directors as may be elected from time to time by the members, provided that the Board shall consist of not less than three (3) persons, unless there shall be fewer than three members, in which case there need be only as many Directors as there are members. A member of the Board of Directors need not be a Unit Owner.

2. Election of Directors.

- (a) After retirement of the original Directors, election of Directors shall be conducted at an annual or special members' meeting. Election shall be by a plurality of votes cast, each person voting being entitled to cast his votes for each of as many nominees as there are vacancies to be filled. There shall be no cumulative voting.
- (b) Except as to vacancies provided by removal of Directors by members, vacancies in the Board of Directors occurring between annual meetings of members shall be filled by the remaining Directors.
- (c) Any Director may be removed by concurrence of eighty (80%) percent of the votes of the entire membership. The vacancy in the Board of Directors so created shall be filled by the members of the Association at the same meeting.
- (d) Until a date which is eighteen (18) months after the date of the Condominium Declaration, or until the Developer has completed and sold the entire interest offered for sale in at least five (5) of the six (6) Units of the Condominium, or until the Developer elects to terminate its control of the Condominium, whichever shall first occur, the first Directors of the Association named in the Articles of Incorporation shall serve, and in the event of vacancies, the remaining Directors shall fill the vacancies, and if there are no remaining Directors, the vacancies shall be filled by the Developer.

Director's Meetings.

- (a) Regular or special meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at such time and place as shall be determined, from time to time, by a majority of the Directors. Notice of all meetings shall be given to each Director, personally or by mail, telephone, or telegraph at least three (3) days prior to the day named for such meeting unless such notice is waived.
- (b) Any Director may waive notice of a meeting in writing before, during, or after the meeting and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of notice. Directors present at a meeting shall be presumed to have received due, or to have waived, notice thereof.
- (c) A quorum at Directors' meeting shall consist of the Directors entitled to cast at least fifty-one (51%) percent of the votes of the entire Board. The joinder of a Director in the action of a meeting by signing and concurring in the minutes thereof shall constitute the presence of such Director for the purpose of determining a quorum. The acts of the Board approved

by a majority of the Board members present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the acts of the Association Directors, except as specifically otherwise provided by law or in the Condominium Declaration, Articles of Incerporation, or these By-Laws. If at any meeting of the Board of Directors less than a quorum is present, the majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to time until a quorum is present. At an adjourned meeting any business which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally called may be transacted without further notice.

- (d) Any action which may be taken at a meeting of the board, may be taken by a consent in writing signed by all of the Directors and filed with the records of proceedings of the Board. Meetings may also be held by telephone conference call, provided all Directors present at the meeting are able to hear each other.
- (e) Directors' fees, if any, shall be determined by the members of the Association.
- 4. Powers of the Board. All of the powers and duties of the Association existing under law and in accordance with the Condominium Declaration and other documents establishing the Condominium shall be exercised by the Board of Directors, its agents, contractors or employees, subject, however, to the provisions of the Condominium Declaration and to the approval by Unit Owners and members of the Association when such is specifically required. Compensation of employees of the Association shall be fixed by the Directors. A Director may also be an employee of the Association.
- 5. Management Agreement. The Board is specifically authorized to enter into a Management Agreement, for such period of time, containing such consideration as the Board may approve, with Continental Resorts Management, Ltd. or any other Manager (which may be a corporation related to Developer) for the maintenance, repair, operation, and administration of the Condominium, and, pursuant to any such Management Agreement, the Board may delegate to the Manager to the extent permitted by law, all powers and duties of the Board to Act on behalf of the Association with respect to management of the Condominium.

ARTICLE IV

OFFICERS

- 1. Election. The executive Officers of the Association shall be a President, a Vice-President, both of whom shall be Directors, a Treasurer, and a Secretary, neither of whom shall need be Directors. All Officers shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors and may be preemptorily removed by vote of the Directors at any meeting thereof. Any person may hold two offices except that the President shall not also be the Secretary. The Board of Directors shall from time to time elect such other Officers (who need not be Directors or Unit Owners) and designate their powers and duties as the Board shall find to be required to manage the affairs of the Association.
- 2. President. The President shall be the chief executive Officer of the Association. He shall have all of the powers and duties which are usually vested in the office of president of an Association, including, but not limited to, the power to appoint committees from among the members from time to time, as he may in his discretion determine appropriate, to assist in the conduct of the affairs of the Association, and to preside over the member meetings.
- 3. Vice-President. The Vice-President shall, in the absence or disability of the President, exercise the powers and perform the duties of the President. He shall also generally assist the President and exercise such other powers and perform such other duties as shall be prescribed by the Directors.
- 4. Secretary. The Secretary shall keep the minute book wherein the resolutions of all proceedings of the Directors and the members shall be recorded. He shall attend to the giving and serving of all notices to the members and Directors and other notices required by law. He shall keep the records of the Association, except those of the Treasurer, and shall perfrom all other duties incident to the office of Secretary of an Association and as may be required by the Directors or the President.

- 5. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have custody of all property of the Association including funds, securities, and evidences of indebtedness. He shall keep the assessment rolls and accounts of the members; he shall keep the books of the Association in accordance with good accounting practice; and he shall perform all other duties incident to the office of Treasurer.
- Compensation. The compensation of all employees of the Association, including Officers, shall be fixed by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE V

ASSESSMENTS AND FISCAL MANAGEMENT

1. Preparation of Annual Budget, Initial Budget. On or before December 1st of each year, the Board of Directors shall prepare a budget (the "Annual Budget") based on an estimate of the total cost of insurance, wages, materials, services, and supplies and other Common Expenses including fees payable to the Manager during the ensuing calendar year for the management and maintenance of the Condominium Property, together with reasonable amounts considered by the Board to be necessary for any reserves which may be established. The Annual Budget shall also contain, as a distinct part thereof, all estimated expenses and reserves for the ensuing calendar year to cover all additional costs to be incurred by the Association the Manager, for maintenance, upkeep and operation of all Timeshare Units of the Condominium, including, but not limited to, funds necessary for repair and upkeep resulting from normal wear and tear; purchase or lease, repair and replacement of furniture, fixtures, appliances, carpeting, utensils, linens, and all other personal property appurtenant to such Timeshare Units, and reserves necessary therefor; casualty, liability, hazard and contents insurance; real estate, personal property and other taxes against such Units or their contents; maid service and any other expenses incurred in the normal operation and maintenance of all such Timeshare Units. On or before December 15th of each year, the Board

shall mail to each Unit Owner a copy of the proposed Annual Budget for the ensuing year together with a written statement of the annual or monthly assessments pertaining to the Unit, which assessments shall be fixed in accordance with the provisions of the Condominum Declaration. If the Budget or proposed assessments are amended, a copy of the amended budget or statement of assessment shall be furnished each Unit Owner concerned. Until an Annual Budget is adopted by the Board of Directors as provided in Section 1 of this Article V, monthly assessments shall be paid on the basis of the initial Annual Budget prepared by the Developer and presented to each Unit Owner upon purchase of an interest in his Unit.

- 2. No Waiver. The failure or delay of the Board of Directors to prepare or to transmit to Unit Owners an Annual Budget or statement of assessments shall not constitute a waiver or release in any manner of the obligation of any Unit Owner to pay assessments against his Unit for which he is obligated, whenever the same shall be determined. In the absence of an Annual Budget or statement of assessments, each Unit Owner shall continue to pay then existing monthly installments against the assessments established for the previous period until changed by delivery of a revised statement of assessments.
- 3. Additional Assessments. In the event that the Annual Budget and the assessments made pursuant thereto prove to be insufficient for any reason, including nonpayment of any assessment, the Annual Budget and assessments therefor may be amended at any time by the Board of Directors and supplemental or additional assessments made. Notice of such amended budget and assessments shall be given as provided in Section 1 of this Article V.
- 4. <u>Budget Items</u>. The Annual Budget shall have separate divisions for general Common Expenses applicable to all Units (other than Special Units) and Special Common Expenses which relate only to Timeshare Units, and each of such major budget division may include allocations for, and the funds and expenditures of the Association may be credited and charged to,

accounts under the following classifications, as shall be appropriate, all of which expenditures shall be Common Expenses:

- (a) Current Expenses, including all funds to be used and expenditures to be made within the year for which the funds are budgeted to pay current Common Expenses for the maintenance and management of the Condominium Property, including reasonable amounts for contingencies related to such expenses.
- (b) Reserve for Deferred Maintenance, including funds for maintenance items which occur less frequently than annually.
- (c) Reserve for Obsolescence and Replacements, including funds for repairs or replacements to the Condominium Property required because of uninsured casualty, damage, depreciation or obsolescence.
- (d) Reserve for Alterations and Improvements, including funds for cush alterations or improvements to the Common Elements which may have been authorized in accordance with the Condominium Declaration and for additional movable property needed in the management and operation of the Condominium Property and which will become part of the Common Elements.
- (e) Roserve for Bad Dobts, including funds to offset reasonably anticipated fefaults in payments of assessments and other obligations due the Association.
- (f) Working Capital, including funds necessary to provide sufficient cash to the Association to pay current obligations as they become due.

The Board of Directors or Manager, in its absolute discretion, may establish from time to time such other accounts or budget classifications as it may deem appropriate for the proper administration of the Condominium Property.

5. Emergency Expenditures. Extraordinary or emergency expenditures not originally included in the Annual Budget but which may become necessary shall be first charged against any approprate reserves available for such contingencies, and, to the extent such reserves are unavailabel or inadequate, the Board of Directors or Manager may levy additional assessments against any or all Unit Owners or Co-Owners. In the event that such additional assessments would result in Unit Owners or Co-Owners as a group having to pay an amount for the current year in excess of five (5) times the amount of assessments paid for the previous year, then

any such a-ditional assessments shall be made only upon written notice to and approval of Unit Owners or Co-Owners affected and entitled to cast at least sixty (60%) percent of the votes of members in the Association and shall be due in such installments and at such times as may be specified in the notice of such assessment. Other assessments which the Board of Directors may levy against Units and Unit Owners shall be made, apportioned, and collected in the manner set forth in those provisions of the Condominium Documents or law authorizing the same or in the action of the Board in making the assessment, and, in lieu thereof, in the same manner as provided in Section 1 of this Article.

- 6. Additional Revenues. All net revenues received by the Association in the proceeding year from operation of revenue producing activities on the Condominium Property (e.g., revenues from coin-operated laundry) shall be included in Common Surplus as provided in Section 7 of this Article V and applied as provided therein.
- 7. Accounting. On or before the date of the annual members' meeting of each year, the Board of Directors or Manager shall provide all Unit Owners with a copy of an itemized accounting of the Common Expenses actually incurred and paid for the preceding year, together with a tabulation of all amounts collected pursuant to assessments levied and other revenues of the Association, if any, and showing the net amount over or short of actual expenditures plus reserves. Any amount accumulated in excess of the amount required for actual expenses and reserves shall be Common Surplus and shall be apportioned among the Unit Owners as provided in the Condominium Declaration and credited to each Unit Owner's next installment payable for assessments for the current year, until exhausted. Any net shortage shall be accounted for in the Annual Budget for the current year or charged to each Owner as an immediately payable additional assessment for the current year.

- 8. Books and Records. The Treasurer, or the Manager pursuant to the provision of the Management Agreement, shall keep full and correct books of account, including itemized records of all receipts and expenditures, and the same shall be open for inspection by any Unit Owner, any representative of a Unit Owner duly authorized in writing, or the mortgagee of any Unit at such reasonable time or times during normal business hours as may be requested by the Unit Owner or his representative or mortgagee. The Treasurer or Manager shall also maintain a separate account for each Unit which shall be kept current at all times and which shall show: (i) the name and address of the Unit Owner or Owners and the mortgagee(s) of the Unit, if any, (ii) the amount and due date of all assessments pertaining to the Unit, (iii) all amounts paid on account, and (iv) any balance due. Upon written request of a Unit Owner or his mortgagee, the Treasurer or Manager shall promptly furnish a certificate or statement of account setting forth the amount of any unpaid assessments or other charges due and owing by such Unit Owner.
- 9. Payment of Assessments. All installments on assessments shall be payable to the order of THE COURTYARDS OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. and shall be paid at the principal office of the Association, or to such other person or entity and at such other place as the Board of Directors may from time to time designate.

Any installment on any assessment for Common Expenses not paid within ten (10) days after the date when due shall be delinquent as of the eleventh day after the date due. Not later than eighty-three (83) days after any such assessment becomes delinquent, the Association or Manager shall serve upon the Unit Owner or Co-Owner liable for any such delinquent installment a sworn detailed statement of the Association's claim for any or all delinquent installments on assessments for Common Expenses together with interest at the rate of ten (10%) percent per annum from due date. Such state-

ment shall be executed by the Treasurer or Secretary of the Association and shall be duly acknowledged and sworn to before a Notary Public and shall either be personally delivered or sent by certified mail, registered or return receipt requested, to the responsible Unit Owner or Co-Owner. In the event that payment is not forthcoming, the Secretary or Treasurer or Manager shall, not later than ninety (90) days after the date on which the installment becomes delinquent, take necessary measures to file in the records of the Recorder of Mortgages for the Parish of Orleans, an affidavit claiming a privilege and lien on behalf of the Association against the defaulting Owner's interes in the Unit and Condominium Parcel liable for such assessment. The affidavit may be signed and verified by any Director or Officer of the Association or a duly authorized officer of the Manager, and shall include (i) a description of the Condominium Parcel by reference to the Condominium Declaration, the Unit designation and any other information necessary for proper identification, (ii) the name of the Unit Owner, whose interest in the Unit is subject to the lien and privilege and the names of all record owners of the Unit, (iii) the amount of all delinquent installments, payments or assessments for Common Expenses, and (iv) the date on which the said installments or payments became delinquent.

In the event that payment of the claim of lien is not forthcoming after filing of the claim of lien, the Board of Directors or Manager may take necessary measures to have filed on behalf of the Association a suit on such claim and to foreclose on the interest of the defaulting Owner in his Unit and Condominium Parcel in a civil action in a court of competent jurisdiction in Orleans Parish. Any such suit may claim all past due amounts plus interest, the cost of the suit, and reasonable attorgey's fees. Such suit must be filed before the expiration date of one (1) year after the date of recordation of the inscription of the lien in the office of the Recorder of Mortgages for Orleans Parish.

In addition to the remedies provided above, the Association or Manager may deny use, possession, and occupancy of any Unit or Timeshare Unit and of the Common Elements to any Unit Owner or Co-Owner who is in default in payment of any assessment or installment on assessment for Common Expenses, until such past due amounts and all penalties and interest with respect thereto are paid in full.

- 10. Notices to Mortgagees. Any Unit Owner who mortgages his Unit shall notify the Secretary of the name and address of his mortgagee. The Secretary shall maintain such information in a special book or file. Whenever so requested in writing, the Treasurer or Manager will promptly report to a mortgagee of a Unit any unpaid assessments or other default by the Owner of such Unit. A copy of any notice of default sent by the Association to a Unit Owner shall also be sent to the mortgager of the Unit whose name and address has theretofore been furnished the Association.
- 11. Deposit of Funds. The depository of the funds of the Association shall be such bank or banks as shall be designated from time to time by the Board of Directors or Manager. Withdrawal of monies from such accounts shall be only by checks signed by such persons as are authorized by resolutions of the Board of Directors or by authorized officers and agents of the Manager. All funds collected by the Association from assessments may be comingled in a single fund; but they shall be held for the Unit Owners in the respective shares in which they are paid and credited to accounts from which shall be paid the expenses for which the respective assessments were made.
- of Directors from all Officers and employees of the Association or of the Manager or of other agents or contractors handling or responsible for the Association's funds. The amount of such bonds shall be determined by the Board of Directors. The premiums on such bonds shall be paid by the Association and shall be a part of the Common Expenses.

ARTICLE VI

RULES AND REGULATIONS

- 1. Adoption. The Board of Directors may in its discretion, and shall at the Direction of members holding fifty-one (518) percent of the total votes of teh Association, adopt or amend reasonable rules and regulations concerning the details of operation and use of the Condominium Property, including maintenance, conservation, and beautification of the Condominium Property and for the health, comfort, safety, and general welfare of the Owners and Occupants of the Units. The Association or Manager shall have the authority to deny use, occupany, and possession of any Unit or Timeshare Unit and of the Common Elements to any Unit Owner or Co-Owner or trustee or occupant while they are in violation of such Rules and Regulations.
- 2. Notice. Written notice of the adoption or amendment of such rules and regulations and a copy thereof shall be furnished to each Unit Owner and Occupant prior to their effective date, and a copy of the current rules and regulations applicable to the Condominium Property shall be maintained at all times in the records of the Association.
- 3. Initial Rules and Regulations. The initial Rules and Rugulations of the Association, which shall be effective until amended by the Board of Directors as provided in Section 1 of this Article, are annexed to the Condominium Declaration as Exhibit D.

ARTICLE VII

1. General. The Association shall indomnify and hold harmless each of its Directors and Officers and the Board of Directors, Developer, and Manager against all contractual and other liabilities to others arising out of contracts made by, or other acts of, such Directors, Board, Officers, Developer, or Manager on behalf of the Unit Owners, or arising out of their status as Directors, Board, Officers, Developer, or Manager, unless any such contract or act shall have been made

fraudulently or with gross negligence or criminal intent. Such indemnification shall include indemnification against all costs and expenses (including, but not limited to, counsel fees, amounts of judgments paid, and amounts paid in settlement) reasonably incurred in connection with the defense of any claim, action, suit, or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, or other in which any such indomnified party may be involved by virtue of such party being or having been a Director, Officer, Board Member, Developer or Manager; provided, however, that such indemnity shall not be operative with respect to any matter as to which such persons shall have been finally adjudged in such action, suit, or proveeding to be liable for gross negligence or fraud in the performance of his duties as a Director, Officer, Board Member, Manager, or Developer. Expenses incurred in defending a civil or criminal action, suit, or proceeding may be paid by the Association in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit, or proceeding as authorized by the Board in any specific case, upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of the indomnified party in advance to repay such amount unless it shall be ultimately determined that the indemnified party is entitled to be indemnified by the Association as authorized herein. The Association and its Board of Directors shall have power and responsibility to raise, by special assessment or otherwise, any sums required to discharge its obligation under this Article; provided, however, that the liability of any Unit Owner arising out of any contract made by or other acts of the indemnified parties shall be limited to such Unit Owners' percentage of liability for the Common Expenses.

2. A Representative Capacity. Any agreement made by the Directors, Board of Directors, Officers, Developer, or Manager on behalf of the Unit Owners and Association may provided that the parties making such agreement are acting only as the agent for the Unit Owners and Association and shall have no personal liability thereunder (except as Unit Owners, if applicable), and that each Unit Owners' liability thereunder shall be limited to such Unit

Owners' share of liability for the Common Expenses.

3. Additional Indemnification. The indemnification provided by this Article shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which those seeking indemnification may be entitled under any statute, agreement, vote of members of the Association or disinterested members of the Board, or otherwise, both as to action in an official capacity or as to action in another capacity. Such right to indemnification shall continue as to any person or entity who has ceased to be a member of a class specified herounder entitled to indemnification and shall inure to the benefits of the heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, successors, and assigns of such person or entity.

ARTICLE VIII

NOTICES

- 1. Delivery. Any notice required by the Condominium Documents or by law to be given in writing by an Unit Owner to another Unit Owner or the Association or its Board of Directors or by the Association or its Board of Directors to any Unit Owner, Association member, or other person or entity shall be deemed sufficient if delivered personally or deposited in the United States Mail, registered or certified, addressed to the registered office of the Association, as filed with the Louisiana Secretary of State, and to the last address of such Unit Owner, Association member, or other person appearing in the records of the Association.
- 2. Waiver. A written waiver of any required notice, executed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether executed before or after the required time for the notice, shall be deemed equivalent to the required notice.

ARTICLE IX

PARLIAMENTARY RULES

Roberts' Rules of Order (latest edition) shall govern the conduct of Association proceedings when not in conflict with the Condomirium Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation, or these By-Laws or with the laws of the State of Louisiana.

ARTICLE X

AMENDMENTS

Amendments to the By-Laws shall be proposed and adopted in the following manner:

- 1. Notice of the subject matter of a proposed amendment shall be included in the notice of any meeting at which a proposed amendment is considered.
- 2. A resolution adopting a proposed amendment must receive approval by a vote of sixty (60%) percent of the entire membership. Members not present at the meetings considering the amendment may express their approval in writing thereafter. Until the first election of Directors by the members at an annual or special meeting, By-Laws may be approved by the unanimous vote of the Directors.
- 3. An amendment may be proposed by either the Board of Directors or by any member of the Association.
- 4. An amendment when adopted as set forth in Section 2 of this Article above shall become effective only after a copy of the same, certified by the President and Secretary as having been duly adopted, is recorded in the Conveyance Records of Orleans Parish, Louisiana in the same manner as recordation of the original Condominium Declaration to which the original By-Laws are annexed as an exhibit.
- 5. These By-Laws shall be amended, if necessary, so as to make the same consistent with the provisions of the Condominium Declaration and the requirements of law.
- 6. No amendment shall discriminate against any Unit Owner (including the Developer) or against any Unit or class or group of Units unless the Unit Owners so affected shall consent.

The foregoing were adopted as the BY-LAWS OF THE COURTYARDS OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., a nonprofit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana, at the first meeting of the APPROVED: SWINDS APPROVED: Board of Directors.